UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER

UMC Governing Board Meeting

Wednesday, September 24, 2025 2:00 p.m.
Delta Point Building - Emerald Conference Room - 1st Floor
901 Rancho Lane

Las Vegas



AGENDA

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada
Meeting of the
GOVERNING BOARD
September 24, 2025, 2:00 p.m.
901 Rancho Lane, Las Vegas, Nevada
Delta Point Building, Emerald Conference Room (1t Floor)

Notice is hereby given that a Meeting of the UMC Governing Board has been called and will be
held on Wednesday, September 24, 2025, commencing at 2:00 p.m. at the location listed above
to consider the following:

This meeting has been properly noticed and posted online at University Medical Center of Southern
Nevada’s website http://www.umcsn.com and at Nevada Public Notice at https://notice.nv.qov/ and at 901
Rancho Lane. Las Vegas, NV

765-7949. The Board may combine two or more agenda items for consideration.
. Iltems on the agenda may be taken out of order.
e The Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item at any time.

amend, etc.

. Items taken separately from the Consent Agenda by Board members at the meeting will be heard in order.

e The main agenda is available on University Medical Center of Southern Nevada’s website http://www.umcsn.com, For copies
of agenda items and supporting back-up materials, please contact Stephanie Ceccarelli, Governing Board Secretary, at (702)

e  Consent Agenda - All matters in this sub-category are considered by the Board to be routine and may be acted upon in one
motion. Most agenda items are phrased for a positive action. However, the Board may take other actions such as hold, table,

e Consent Agenda items are routine and can be taken in one motion unless a Board member requests that an item be taken
separately. For all items left on the Consent Agenda, the action taken will be staff's recommendation as indicated on the item.

SECTION 1. OPENING CEREMONIES
CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
INVOCATION
TRANQUILITY MOMENT

1. Public Comment.

PUBLIC COMMENT. This is a period devoted to comments by the general public about
items on this agenda. If you wish to speak to the Board about items within its
jurisdiction but not appearing on this agenda, you must wait until the “Comments by the
General Public” period listed at the end of this agenda. Comments will be limited to
three minutes. Please step up to the speaker's podium, clearly state your name and
address, and please spell your last name for the record. If any member of the Board
wishes to extend the length of a presentation, this will be done by the Chair or the Board
by majority vote.

2. Approval of Minutes of the regular meeting of the UMC Governing Board held on August
27, 2025. (Available at University Medical Center, Administrative Office) (For possible
action)

3. Approval of Agenda. (For possible action)

Page 2 of

194


http://www.umcsn.com/
https://notice.nv.gov/
http://www.umcsn.com/

SECTION 2: CONSENT ITEMS

4.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Approve the September 2025 Medical and Dental Staff Credentialing Activities for
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) as authorized by the Medical
Executive Committee (MEC) on September 23, 2025; and take action as deemed
appropriate. (For possible action)

Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Amendment to the Facility
Agreement with Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield and HMO Colorado, Inc. for
Managed Care Services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

Ratify the Third Amendment to the Preferred Provider Agreement with Culinary Health
Fund Administrative Services, LLC for Managed Care Services; or take action as
deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Network Provider
Agreement with Nomi Health, Inc. for Managed Care Services; or take action as deemed
appropriate. (For possible action)

Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign Amendment Ten to the
Primary Care Provider Group Services Agreement with Optum Health Networks, Inc. for
Managed Care Services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

Ratify the Letter of Understanding with P3 Health Partners-Nevada, LLC for Managed
Care Services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Amendment to the
Individual/Group Provider Agreement with Sierra Health and Life Insurance Company,
Inc. and Sierra Healthcare Options, Inc. for Managed Care Services; or take action as
deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Second Amendment to
Master Services Agreement with HealthCare Inspired, LLC for Coding Support Services;
or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Services Agreement with
Comprehensive Care Services, Inc. for Perfusion, related Services and Equipment;
authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute future amendments within the not-to-
exceed amount of this Agreement; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible
action)

Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Professional Services
Agreement for Teleradiology Clinical Services with Real Radiology, LLC; or take action
as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

Review and recommend for approval by the Board of Hospital Trustees for University
Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the Amendment Five to Master Professional
Services Agreement and its Statement of Work with Medicus Healthcare Solutions, LLC
for locum tenens and advanced practitioners staffing services; authorize the Chief
Executive Officer to execute future amendments within the not-to-exceed amount of this
Agreement; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

Page 3 of

194



SECTION 3: BUSINESS ITEMS

15. Receive an educational overview from Janella Green, Lean Transformation Specialist,
regarding the Lean Six Sigma Program; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible
action)

16. Review and discuss the Governing Board 2025 Action Plan, to include an update from

Marsha Al-Sayegh, Employee Experience Program Manager, regarding results from the
UMC Employee Engagement Survey; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action)

17. Receive a report from the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee; and take any
action deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

18. Receive the monthly financial report from the Chief Financial Officer for the August FY26
financial report; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

19. Receive an update from the Dean of the Kirk Kerkorian, School of Medicine at UNLV;
and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

20. Receive an update from the Hospital CEO; and take any action deemed appropriate.
(For possible action)

SECTION 4: EMERGING ISSUES

21. Identify emerging issues to be addressed by staff or by the Board at future meetings;
and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action)

SECTION 5: CLOSED SESSION

22. Go into closed session pursuant to NRS 241.015(4)(c), to receive information from
the General Counsel regarding potential or existing litigation involving matters over
which the Board had supervision, control, jurisdiction or advisory power, and to
deliberate toward a decision on the matters; and direct staff accordingly. (For
possible action)

23. Go into closed session pursuant to NRS 450.140(3) to discuss new or material
expansion of UMC'’s health care services and hospital facilities.

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

A period devoted to comments by the general public about matters relevant to the Board’s
jurisdiction will be held. No action may be taken on a matter not listed on the posted agenda.
Comments will be limited to three minutes. Please step up to the speaker’s podium, clearly
state your name, and address and please spell your last name for the record.

All comments by speakers should be relevant to the Board’s action and jurisdiction.

UMCSN ADMINISTRATION KEEPS THE OFFICIAL RECORD OF ALL PROCEEDINGS OF UMCSN GOVERNING
BOARD. IN ORDER TO MAINTAIN A COMPLETE AND ACCURATE RECORD OF ALL PROCEEDINGS, ANY
PHOTOGRAPH, MAP, CHART, OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENT USED IN ANY PRESENTATION TO THE BOARD
SHOULD BE SUBMITTED TO UMCSN ADMINISTRATION. IF MATERIALS ARE TO BE DISTRIBUTED TO THE
BOARD, PLEASE PROVIDE SUFFICIENT COPIES FOR DISTRIBUTION TO UMCSN ADMINISTRATION.

THE BOARD MEETING ROOM IS ACCESSIBLE TO INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES. WITH TWENTY-FOUR (24)
HOUR ADVANCE REQUEST, A SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETER MAY BE MADE AVAILABLE (PHONE: 702-765-
7949).

3

Page 4 of

194



University Medical Center of Southern Nevada
Governing Board Meeting
August 27, 2025

Emerald Conference Room (1% Floor)
Delta Point Building

901 Rancho Lane

Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada
Wednesday, August 27, 2025

2:00 PM

The University Medical Center Governing Board met in regular session, at the location and date
above, at the hour of 2:00 PM. The meeting was called to order at the hour of 2:06 PM by Chair
O’Reilly. The following members were present, which constituted a quorum of the members

thereof:

CALL TO ORDER

Board Members:

Present:

John O’Reilly, Chair

Harry Hagerty, Vice Chair
Donald Mackay, M.D.
Laura Lopez-Hobbs

Mary Lynn Palenik

Renee Franklin

Bill Noonan

Robyn Caspersen (WebEx)
Chris Haase (WebEXx)

Ex-Officio Members:

Present:
John Fildes, MD, Ex-Officio
Dr. Meena Vohra, Chief of Staff

Alison Netski, Dean of Kirk Kerkorian SOM at UNLV

Absent:
None

Others Present:

Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer

Tony Marinello, Chief Operating Officer
Jennifer Wakem, Chief Financial Officer
Deb Fox, Chief Nursing Officer

Col. Jeremy Kilburn, M.D., Office of Military Medicine
Patty Scott, Quality, Safety and Regulatory Officer
James Conway, Assistant General Counsel
Stephanie Ceccarelli, Governing Board Secretary

Page 5 of 194



UMC Governing Board

August 27, 2025

Page 2 of 16

SECTION 1: OPENING CEREMONIES

ITEM NO. 1

ITEM NO. 2

ITEM NO. 3

CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

INVOCATION

TRANQUILITY MOMENT

The Board members participated in an exercise provided by the UMC Tranquility
Nursing team. The Board members participated in an interactive exercise
involving guided imagery through the UMC Care Channel to promote healing and
relaxation. The Care Channel is a service available at UMC.CareChannel.net.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Chair O’Reilly asked if there were any persons present in the audience wishing to
be heard on any item on this agenda.

Speakers: None

Approval of Minutes of the regular Meeting of the UMC Governing Board held
on July 30, 2025. (Available at University Medical Center, Administrative
Office) (For possible action)

FINAL ACTION:

A motion was made by Member Mackay that the minutes be approved as
presented. Motion carried by unanimous vote.

Approval of Agenda (For possible action)

FINAL ACTION:

A motion was made by Member Hagerty that the agenda be approved as
presented. Motion carried by unanimous vote.

SECTION 2: CONSENT ITEMS

ITEM NO. 4

ITEM NO. 5

Approve the August 2025 Medical and Dental Staff Credentialing Activities
for University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) as authorized by
the Medical Executive Committee (MEC) on August 26, 2025; and take action
as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
- Credentialing Activities

Approve the Clinical Quality and Professional Affairs Committee’s
recommendation for approval of the UMC Policies and Procedures

Page 6 of

194



UMC Governing Board

August 27, 2025

Page 3 of 16

ITEM NO. 6

ITEM NO. 7

ITEM NO. 8

ITEM NO. 9

ITEM NO. 10

ITEM NO. 11

Committee’s activities from its meetings held on June 4, 2025 and July 2,
2025; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
- Policies and Procedures June 2025
- Policies and Procedures July 2025

Approve changes to various HR Policies and Procedures; and take action
as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:

- Recruitment and Selection Policy

- Position Classification and Compensation Plans Policy
- Performance Evaluation Program Policy

- HR Procedure Disciplinary Hearing Process

Approve the revisions to the UMC Governing Board Policies and
Procedures related to committee responsibilities; and make any changes
deemed necessary. (For possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
- Governing Board Policies and Procedures

Ratify the Fifth Amendment to the Hospital Service Agreement with Cigna
Health and Life Insurance Company for Managed Care Services; or take
action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
- Hospital Services Agreement Amendment 5 — Redacted
- Disclosure of Ownership

Ratify the Fifth Amendment to the Hospital Services Agreement with Optum
Health Networks, Inc. for Managed Care Services; or take action as deemed
appropriate. (For possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
- Hospital Services Agreement Amendment 5 — Redacted
- Disclosure of Ownership

Ratify the Amendment Nine to the Primary Care Provider Group Services
Agreement with Optum Health Networks, Inc. for Managed Care Services;
or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
- Participation Agreement - Amendment 9
- Disclosure of Ownership

Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Participating
Health System Agreement with Multiplan, Inc. for Managed Care Services;
or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

Page 7 of

194



UMC Governing Board

August 27, 2025

Page 4 of 16

ITEM NO. 12

ITEM NO. 13

ITEM NO. 14

ITEM NO. 15

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
- Provider Agreement
- Disclosure of Ownership

Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Agreement
for Pest Prevention Services with Rentokil North America, Inc.; authorize
the Chief Executive Officer to execute future amendments and extensions;
or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:

- Pest Prevention Service Agreement
- Sourcing Letter

- Disclosure of Ownership

Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Board the
Agreements with Gage Technologies Inc., Extreme Networks, Inc., Insight
Direct USA, Inc., and Lumen Technologies Group for the Telephone System
Upgrade Project; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute
extensions and amendments; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For
possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:

- Agreement Avaya Communications Solution
- Extreme Networks — Quote

- Insight Direct USA — Quote

- Lumen — Quote

- Gage - Disclosure of Ownership

- Extreme Networks — Disclosure of Ownership
- Insight Direct USA — Disclosure of Ownership
- Lumen — Disclosure of Ownership

Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Master
Equipment and Products Agreement, Supplement and Addendum with
Siemens Healthcare Diagnostics, Inc.; authorize the Chief Executive Officer
to execute future amendments and extensions; or take action as deemed
appropriate. (For possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
- Agreement — Redacted

- Sourcing Letter

- Disclosure of Ownership

Review and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Transplant
Listing Fee Agreement with United Network For Organ Sharing (UNOS);
authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute future amendments and
extensions; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
- Transplant Listing Fee Agreement

Page 8 of

194



UMC Governing Board

August 27, 2025

Page 5 of 16

ITEM NO. 16

ITEM NO. 17

ITEM NO. 18

Approve the overall FY2025 Organizational Performance Objectives as
reviewed and recommended by the Human Resources and Executive
Compensation Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For
possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
- FY25 UMC Organizational Goal Results

Approve the overall FY2026 Organizational Performance Objectives as
recommended by the Human Resources and Executive Compensation
Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
- FY26 Organizational Performance Objectives

Approve the recommended CEO merit salary adjustment and incentive
bonus for Fiscal Year 2025; and recommend for ratification by the Board of
Hospital Trustees for the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada;
and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
- FY25 UMC Organizational Goal Results

FINAL ACTION:
A motion was made by Member Noonan that Consent Items 4-18 be approved as
presented. Motion carried by unanimous vote.

SECTION 3: BUSINESS ITEMS

ITEM NO. 19

Receive an educational overview from Col. Jeremy Kilburn, MD, regarding
the Office of Military Medicine; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible
action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
- PowerPoint Presentation

DISCUSSION:

Col. Jeremy Kilburn, MD - Director, Office of Military Medicine, shared an update
regarding the Las Vegas Military/Civilian Partnership. This partnership represents
the largest and most advanced military-civilian medical collaboration in the US and
continues to grow. UMC is the principle strategic partner, along with UNLV and
three major Air Force organizations. The Office of Military Medicine oversees all of
the military medicine at UMC.

There are over 40 integrated providers, 40 rotating providers, 11 integrated
nurses with 100 rotators per year and 18 integrated technicians with
approximately 250 rotating per year. The military medics have been fully
integrated at UMC to assist in medically serving the community. The Air Force

Page 9 of

194



UMC Governing Board

August 27, 2025

Page 6 of 16

ITEM NO. 20

sponsors 41 UNLV GME positions in ER, Surgery, Ob/Gyn, and Pulmonary and
Critical Care. Future growth is expected in both GME and non-GME positions.

The Military Health System Strategic Partnership of the American College of
Surgeons Report highlighted committed leadership between UMC and the Air
Force, excellent infrastructure in the Office of Military Medicine, clinical volume,
support, and many other strengths in the program. Opportunities for growth
include live tissue training, further GME investment and military specific
curriculum.

The Mission Zero grant has been awarded to fund support for credentialing, UMC
salaries, medical malpractice coverage, and education. As part of the DoD
Skillbridge partnership, the program assists individuals leaving the military in
participating in a 4—6-month internship, with the possibility of becoming a UMC
employee. Col. Kilburn highlighted the accomplishments of the new research
program. Slides displayed military medics providing care at UMC, as well as
during deployment in military service over the years.

He concluded his presentation by thanking Mr. Van Houweling, Shana Tello,
Nicole Owens, and the UMC Administration and staff for their leadership,
mentorship, and continued support of this collaboration. There was continued
conversation regarding the great partnership with military medicine and the
training provided.

Chairman O’Reilly thanked the Military Medicine team for the success of the
program.

FINAL ACTION:
None

Receive and discuss the Governing Board 2025 Action Plan, to include an
update from Patty Scott, Quality, Safety, and Regulatory Officer, regarding
the DNV survey results; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For
possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
- PowerPoint Presentation

DISCUSSION:

Patricia Scott, Quality Patient Safety & Regulatory Officer, provided a brief
update on the 2025 DNV Hospital Surveys. The initial 3-day survey in April
included a total of eight surveyors. The Comprehensive Stroke Center
Certification was in May for 2 days with two surveyors.

UMC received a full 3-year hospital accreditation, as well as Comprehensive
Stroke Center Certification in June.

Ms. Scott next reviewed the timeline for future surveys. Monitoring and
evaluation data is submitted in September as evidence of compliance and

Page 10 of

194



UMC Governing Board

August 27, 2025

Page 7 of 16

ITEM NO. 21

ITEM NO. 22

ongoing sustainability. DNV returns annually with unannounced surveys. The
second and third year surveys are considered periodic checks, with fewer
surveyors and fewer days. ISO 9001 concepts are introduced during this
timeframe. She added that this is an opportunity to follow up on critical findings
from previous surveys and provides lessons learned from other surveys. The
fourth survey will begin the triennial survey period.

The Board congratulated the team for their successes.

FINAL ACTION:
None

Receive a report from the Governing Board Clinical Quality and Professional
Affairs Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible
action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
-  None

DISCUSSION:

Member Franklin provided a report on the meeting, which was held on Monday,
August 11" at 2:00 p.m. A quorum was in attendance. There was no public
comment, and the minutes and agenda were both approved unanimously as
presented.

The committee reviewed the Governing Board Policies and Procedures.

Next, The Committee received an educational update from Sabrina Holloway
regarding the death certificate process. The committee discussed some of the
challenges in the process, as well as the hospital, provider, funeral home, and
State responsibilities. Process improvements and collaboration opportunities
were discussed.

Goals for FY2025 and FY2026 were reviewed. The goals were recommended to
the HR Committee and the Governing Board for approval and were a part of
today’s consent agenda.

Regulatory and Safety program items were discussed and approved.

There were no emerging issues, no public comment, and the meeting adjourned.

FINAL ACTION:
None

Receive a report from the Governing Board Strategic Planning Committee;
and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
-  None

Page 11 of

194



UMC Governing Board

August 27, 2025

Page 8 of 16

ITEM NO. 23

DISCUSSION:

Member Hagerty provided a report on the meeting, which was held on Thursday,
August 14" at 9:00 a.m. A quorum was in attendance. There was no public
comment, and the minutes and agenda were both approved unanimously as
presented.

The Committee reviewed inpatient market share data for a 12-month period.
UMC'’s inpatient share was 8.8% and moved up to 4" in the market. Share has
increased quarter over quarter during the past three quarters. The committee
reviewed market share for all of the focused service lines.

Next, the Committee reviewed trends highlighting growth, improvements, and
challenges in the focused service lines, which included surgery, orthopedics,
cardiac services, ambulatory care, women’s, and children’s services.

Organizational performance goals for FY2025 were reviewed, and the committee
recommended an award of 95% of the goals as being met. The goals were
recommended to the HR Committee and the Governing Board for approval and
were a part of today’s consent agenda.

Lastly, the Committee approved the organizational performance goals for
FY2026.

There were no emerging issues, no public comment, and the meeting adjourned.

FINAL ACTION:
None

Receive areport from the Governing Board Human Resources and Executive
Compensation Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For
possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
-  None

DISCUSSION:

Member Lopez-Hobbs provided a report on the meeting, which was held on
Monday, August 25™, at 2:00 p.m. A quorum was in attendance. There was no
public comment, and the minutes and agenda were both approved unanimously
as presented.

The Committee reviewed and discussed minor changes to various HR policies.
The committee reviewed the HR FY2025 goals, and four of the five goals were
achieved. The committee discussed the overall hospital organizational goals;

achievement was 93.25% overall and was recommended to the Governing Board
for approval on today’s consent agenda.

Page 12 of

194



UMC Governing Board

August 27, 2025

Page 9 of 16

ITEM NO. 24

ITEM NO. 25

The committee next performed a performance review of the CEO. Many
achievements were highlighted and the committee had a lengthy discussion and
approved the CEO bonus, which was recommended for approval and is a part of
today’s consent agenda.

The Committee next reviewed the FY2026 performance goals specific to the HR
Committee and also approved the overall hospital organizational goals for
FY2026 for approval by the Governing Board.

There was one emerging issue discussed, no public comments and the meeting
was adjourned.

FINAL ACTION:
None

Receive a report from the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee;
and take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
-  None

DISCUSSION:

Member Caspersen provided a report on the meeting, which was held on
Wednesday, August 20" 2025, at 2:00 p.m. A quorum was in attendance. There
was no public comment, and the minutes and agenda were both approved
unanimously as presented.

The CFO presented a report on the monthly financial results and the fiscal year-
end financials for July 2025. The discussion covered factors affecting financial
outcomes, comparisons to the budget, as well as operating and financial metrics.
Ms. Wakem next presented a report of the ReVITALize project, which was
completed on time and on budget. She also reported that the external audit with
the BDO external auditors has begun.

The committee goals related to FY26 were discussed, finalized, and
recommended to the Governing Board for approval on today’s consent agenda.

The other business items were reviewed and approved or ratified by the
Committee during the meeting. All of the contracts that were approved during the
meeting are a part of today’s consent agenda.

There were no emerging issues identified, no public comment, and the meeting
adjourned.

FINAL ACTION:
None

Receive the monthly financial report from the Chief Financial Officer for the
June FY25 year-end results and the July FY26 financial report; and take any
action deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

Page 13 of

194



UMC Governing Board

August 27, 2025

Page 10 of 16

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:

- June FY25 Financial Report
- July FY26 Financial Report

DISCUSSION:

Ms. Wakem provided a summary of the monthly financial reports for June FY25
and July FY26.

The key indicators for year to date for June showed admissions on budget. The
AADC was 375. Average length of stay was 5.47 days. Overall hospital acuity
was 1.81 and Medicare CMI was 2.15. Inpatient surgeries were up slightly.
Outpatient surgeries were above budget 8 cases. There were 20 transplant
cases. Approximately 22% of ER patients are being admitted. Quick cares were
below budget, and primary cares were on budget. There were 371 telehealth
visits and orthopedic clinic were up significantly. There were 134 deliveries. The
Crisis Stabilization Center was added as a new service line for June.

The income statement for the month showed operating revenue was below
budget $800k. Total operating expenses were below budget $1.4 million. Total
earnings before depreciation and amortization was $4.8 million on a budget of
$4.5 million, exceeding budget by $300k.

Ms. Wakem next provided a brief year-to-date overview compared to prior year.
There was a 4% increase in total admissions. Observation cases have declined.
Length of stay was 6% below prior year, and observation length of stay is being
managed well and CMI is consistent with prior year. Surgical cases were 473
more than prior year and outpatient surgical cases were 1500 more than prior
year. Transplant cases were above prior year, and ED conversion rate is
consistent. Quick care volumes were slightly below prior year, and primary cares
had strong volumes. Ortho clinic visits show a 40% increase.

June year-to-date EBIDTA was $41.1 million on a budget of $38.7 million.

June SWB showed labor over budget $13.5 million. Overtime was managed well,
but contract labor was higher than anticipated. All other expenses were $21.6
million due to supplies and 340B revenue.

July is the first month of FY2026. The key indicators for July showed admissions
were on budget. Observation cases were below budget. The AADC was 366.
Average length of stay was a record 5.12 days. Overall hospital acuity was 1.88
and Medicare CMI was slightly under budget. Inpatient surgeries were 2% above
budget. Outpatient surgeries were 12% above budget. Inpatient and outpatient
surgeries were above budget. There were 14 transplant cases. ER visits showed
578 visits. Approximately 21.82% of ED patients are being admitted. Quick care
and primary cares were below budget. Ortho clinic is exceeding budget and there
were 107 deliveries. There were 40 CSC visits.

Page 14 of

194



UMC Governing Board

August 27, 2025

Page 11 of 16

ITEM NO.26

The income statement for the month showed operating revenue $3.4 million
below budget. Total operating expenses were $1.6 million below budget. Total
earnings were $2.2 million below budget. Ms. Wakem explained losses from the
Crisis Stabilization Center.

Salaries, wages, and benefits were over budget approximately $1.2 million for
the month, primarily due to radiology and contract labor. Overtime is over budget
by approximately $1.2 million. All other expenses were $2.9 million favorable to
budget.

FINAL ACTION:
None

Receive an update from the Dean of the Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine
at UNLV; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
-  None

Dean Alison Netski provided highlights on the activities for the School of
Medicine.

The Dean shared the following highlights:

Due to the passage of SB280, support is provided for the Cleft and Craniofacial
Clinic to restart. Funds will be allocated to the UNLV School of Dental Medicine
to facilitate the clinic's restart for this region. This will be a partnership with a
variety of community partners and a beneficial addition to the community.

The Dean highlighted that Nadia Gomez, Vice Dean of Clinical Affairs, will be
performing a innovative procedure with radiofrequency ablation for intrauterine
fibroids here at UMC.

UNLV Health has been recognized as Healthcare Partner of the Year by the
Nevada Cancer Coalition for its extensive surgical oncology services in the
community. The school continues to recruit for medical oncology to meet the
community's needs.

The UNLV campus semester for new graduates and undergraduates has begun
with record enroliment of 3,300 students and 8,000 new college students. A new
degree program for Insurance and Risk Management has been added.

Graduate Medical Education: The recent orientation in July welcomed 25 new
Fellows across all programs and 4 Fellows were matched early in the Acute Care
Surgery program.

Community engagement highlights for back-to-school included participation in
back-to-school programs.

Page 15 of

194



UMC Governing Board

August 27, 2025

Page 12 of 16

ITEM NO. 27

Progress in the collaboration between UMC and UNLYV in clinical research
projects were discussed briefly.

Faculty: Burn Director, Dr. Nizamani, is leading the ABA Verification process for
the Lions Burn Center. Chief of Trauma, Deb Kuhls, and Vice Chief, Allison
McNickle, are collaboratively leading the ACS Reverification at UMC.

Chair O’Reilly inquired on the status of a possible collaborative sponsorship
program for medical students between UNLV and UMC.

FINAL ACTION:

None

Receive an update from the Hospital CEO; and take any action deemed
appropriate. (For possible action)

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:
- PowerPoint Presentation

DISCUSSION:
Mason Van Houweling, UMC CEO, provided the following updates:

+ State of Nevada update — UMC is working closely with the State to ensure
patient care and information has been protected.

+ Senator Rosen visit — Updates from UMC News brochure were highlighted.

* Magnet update — This has been a 10-year journey. Site visit survey is
scheduled for November 17-20.

+ Main lobby construction is underway

« UMC’s CNA program is starting in fall 2025. This is a 6-week program,
beginning with 20 students.

« UMC Trauma and Burn Conference will be September 26™

* Best of Las Vegas voting now underway

* Mr. Van Houweling recognized Member Lopez-Hobbs for donating Beanie
Babies for the children in pediatrics.

FINAL ACTION:
None
SECTION 4: EMERGING ISSUES
ITEM NO. 28 Identify emerging issues to be addressed by staff or by the Board at future

meetings; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action)

DISCUSSION:
Member Noonan shared a positive experience of care patient care at UMC.

FINAL ACTION:
None

Page 16 of

194



UMC Governing Board
August 27, 2025 Page 13 of 16

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC:

Comments from the general public were called for:
Speaker Michelle Maese — President of SEIU 1107 Las Vegas, NV 89102 :

Here to express concern regarding news received from Mason, indicating there
were going to be layoffs coming at UMC and noted that the following day there
was an advertisement regarding a hiring fair that UMC was going to be present
at. Other members are present to voice concerns about having six hours of work
per month and then being on unemployment, while other departments are on
mandatory overtime. Ms. Maese stated that the Body is concerned about the
community; we care about the community. She thanked the Member for his
report regarding the pleasant stay at the hospital because of staff. The reason for
the commendation is because of staff; staff works hard at the hospital, and she
hopes that the Board recognizes the hard work that they do in taking care of it.
While there seems to be a shortage in staffing, it is about the lack of dignity and
respect for healthcare professionals. They want to work and care for the
community the best they can, to the best of their ability. They cannot do so if they
don’t have hours or they are overworked. At this time, she turned the floor over to
the SEIU members to speak.

Speaker Jody Domineck - Secretary Treasurer at SEIU 1107 and Nurse in the
Community — 2250 South Rancho:

Echoed the statements from the workers at UMC. They are the ones who are
hands-on with the patients and are preventing infections and delivering the high-
quality care that will earn UMC Magnet status. Stands in support with the staff
and welcomes the Board to listen to them as they express their realities of what it
is like working at UMC.

Speaker Elizibeth Bolhouse — Elected SEIU Chief Nursing Stewart, UMC Peds
ICU RN for 26 years — Las Vegas, NV:

She stated that she comes when it's important, and it's important. Her statement
started with “Help.” We've tried it UMC’s way, and it is failing patients and us.
We’'ve tried 2 CNAs for 32 patients; that's 16 patients each for 1 CNA. We've
tried 5 sitters that are required on our 2 South unit, which is MedSurg,
Behavioral, L2K custody. They send home their unit clerk, despite having 20 out
of 24 beds full. We've tried increasing the ratios. MedSurg nurses went from 1:5
to 1:6. IMC nurses went from 1:4 to 1:5. Tried Charge RN (inaudible) patient
assignment. Tried calling off the unit clerks for cardiac monitor tests to keep
Charge RNs out of assignment, as well as other adjustments in staffing. The
Charge RN has to cover breaks and lunches. Bedside nursing cannot tolerate
any more productivity cuts. You have to help us. One malpractice lawsuit will
wipe out any cost savings, let alone the emotional detriment of everyone
involved. Board of Governors, | am specifically asking you to please ask our CEO
Mason to give a list of all new jobs created in the past 3 years and what positions
actually physically care for and touch a patient, and what pay scale those jobs

Page 17 of 194



UMC Governing Board

August 27, 2025

Page 14 of 16

have. UMC is top heavy. UMC has waste. | understand the Big Beautiful Bill law
has devastating Medicaid cuts to come, but we cannot risk our present for the
future. We have to look elsewhere within ourselves, as Nevada’s highest level of
care takes labor resources. Nurses are afraid to come to work, nurses are afraid
of not being able to take care of patients. As more and more is being placed on
us and less and less resources. Nurses, plural, nurses are in therapy for post-
traumatic stress for working at UMC, and they are not the ones | thought would
crack. They are strong, they’re tough, they’re smart. Why is no one listening? Cut
the fluff and staff us. | promise | will work hard for UMC, but please don’t make
me work unsafe.

Speaker — Sylvia Cedano — NICU - 24-year employee — Las Vegas, NV:

My hours are being cut off. | have been working only 8 hours a week for 2-3
months. It is very stressful. | am concerned; nobody has answers for me. Just go
home. | ask please, “what is it, productivity? They don’t know what the
productivity census is, it could be 16, 8, it could be 12, they're still gonna send
me home. Every month that | come back, it has to be higher on the census. | am
getting sick. | lost all my hair. Please, help us.

Speaker — Eileen Torres — North Las Vegas, NV: Representing the Radiology
Department and Xray:

Ms. Torres stated she had a couple of concerns and read a letter on behalf of the
department. The letter is in representation of 48 x-ray technologist at UMC
hospital. Dedicated professionals and committed to delivering high quality care.
The critical challenge threaten patient safety and staff well-being. We urgently
need your intervention. Since 2017, our radiology team has been chronically
short staffed, creating an unsustainable workflow. Five consecutive years, on
mandatory overtime since 2021, have forced technologists to work 16 plus hour
shifts and return after 8 hours. A dangerous practice, risking patient care and
causing burnout. Our below average wages make it impossible to attract or retain
skilled technologists. Despite UMC demanding (inaudible), the radiology turnover
rate is alarming, with experienced staff leaving due to toxic work environment.
While specials procedures is thriving, only after moving to another director,
exposing leadership failure. HR’s failure to investigate this turnover shows a lack
of accountability. The toxic environment has damaged UMC’s reputation, with
negative online reviews, criticizing management, and deteriorating applicants.
The CAL program meant to reward staff and earn time off is unreliable. Many
technologists have been approved leave, after revoked, after already having
vacations books and tickets paid, causing distress. We proposed replacing
mandatory overtime with incentive pay for voluntary extra shifts to boost morale
and add safety, reduce burnout attract talent and preserve mental health. We
also urge an investigation in HR and the radiology department to address the

Page 18 of

194



UMC Governing Board

August 27, 2025

Page 15 of 16

turnover crisis. Please act swiftly to ensure a workplace to prioritize safety,
fairness, and sustainability. — UMC Xray Staff

Speaker — Teresa McGowan — SEIU Chief Ancillary Stewart at UMC — Las
Vegas, NV:

Here on behalf of ancillary staff. We need help. Our unit clerks and CMTs have
been called off or cancelled since November, having to utilize and deplenish their
CAL. It is not fair. They haven’t been properly sent to other units to float until
recently. It is very, very stressful for them. They’re constantly being called off and
they are scared that their positions are going to be gone, MICU and SICU and
Unit Clerks throughout the hospital. | am here to ask for help, please Governing
Board. Give them consideration. They’re vital. Thank you.

Speaker — Shelly Tabarez — 15 Year Employee — Las Vegas, NV:

Ms. Tabarez was representing ambulatory. We’re losing hours, we’re being
called off, we're being sent home. We don’t have the census. What can we do to
protect our jobs? Three years ago, they brought in the MAs, we knew the LPNs
were being phased out. | hope we don’t lose 100 of our staff, because UMC is a
great hospital. | love working here. Our patients deserve better.

Speaker — Eric Gasper — SEIU Bargaining Unit Vice President — Las Vegas, NV
With financial headwinds we face at UMC due to the Medicaid cuts, | am
confident we are in capable hands. Mason and his team has turned a $100
million shortfall into a $33 million surplus in 2016 demonstrating strong
leadership and vision. At the same time, we hope that staff concerns are heard
with an open mind and compassion. By working together and listening to one
another, and listening to one another, we can navigate these challenges
successfully and continue building a stronger UMC for everyone.

At this time, the public comment section was closed.

Chairman O’Reilly commented that although this is not a time for discussion, the
Board and the management team cares about each individual at the hospital. He
commented that the communication between the management and the union
liasison meet often. The meetings can be increased to address any issues
identified. He thanked the Union for coming and bringing their concerns to the
attention of the Board. He assured that Mason and the management team will
address their concerns.

A motion was made by Member Franklin that the Board go into closed session.

FINAL ACTION TAKEN:

Page 19 of

194



UMC Governing Board
August 27, 2025 Page 16 of 16

At this time, Member Franklin moved to go into the closed session, pursuant to
NRS 241.015(4)(c) and NRS 450.140(3), as outlined in the agenda. The motion
was carried by unanimous vote.

At 3:48 PM, the Board recessed to go into closed session.

The meeting was reconvened in closed session at 3:58 PM.

SECTION 5: CLOSED SESSION

ITEM NO. 29 Go into closed session, pursuant to NRS 241.015(4)(c), to receive
information from the General Counsel regarding potential or existing
litigation involving matters over which the Board had supervision, control,
jurisdiction or advisory power, and to deliberate toward a decision on the
matters; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action)

ITEM NO. 30 Go into closed session pursuant to NRS 450.140(3) to discuss new or
material expansion of UMC’s health care services and hospital facilities.

FINAL ACTION:

At the hour of 4:42 PM, the closed sessions on the above topics ended and
the meeting was adjourned.

APPROVED:
Minutes Prepared by: Stephanie Ceccarelli, Governing Board Secretary

Page 20 of 194



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA
GOVERNING BOARD
AGENDA ITEM

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling

Recommendation:

That the Governing Board approve the September 2025 Medical and Dental Staff
Credentialing Activities for University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) as
authorized by the Medical Executive Committee (MEC) on September 23, 2025; and
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

FISCAL IMPACT:

None

BACKGROUND:

As per Medical Staff Bylaws, Credentialing actions will be approved by the Medical Executive Committee
(MEC) and submitted to the Governing Board monthly.

This action grants practitioners and Advanced Practice Professionals the authority to render care within UMC.
At the September 18, 2025 meeting, these activities were reviewed by the Credentials Committee and

recommended for approval by the Medical Executive Committee.

The MEC reviewed and approved these credentialing activities at the September 23, 2025 meetings.

Cleared for Agenda
September 24, 2025

Agenda Item #

4

Page 21 of 194



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA

Page 1
September 24, 2025

Date: September 24, 2025

To: Governing Board

From: Credentials Committee

Subject: September 18, 2025 Credentialing Activities

e NEW BUSINESS:

e APRN SANE DOP
e Medicine DOP - Transplant Hepatology

e CREDENTIALS

A. INITIAL FPPE FOR MEMBERSHIP AND PRIVILEGES

09/23/2025 - CAT. 1
1 | Bishop Mara APRN 01/31/2027 Radiology UMC Radiology
09/23/2025 - CAT. 1
2 | Bral Daniel D.O 02/28/2027 Anesthesiology UMC Anesthesia
09/23/2025 - OBGYN/Maternal Fetal CAT.1
3 | Brar Pooja M.D. 03/31/2027 Medicine UNLV Health
09/23/2025 - CAT. 1
4 | Chen Alexander M.D. 01/31/2027 General Surgery UNLV Health
Mike O'Callaghan
09/23/2025 - Military Medical CAT. 1
5 | Difabio Rebecca M.D 07/31/2027 Emergency Medicine Center
09/23/2025 - CAT.1
6 | Dudley Kaci M.D. 07/31/2027 Radiology UMC Radiology
09/23/2025 - CAT. 1
7 | Guest Rachel M.D 11/30/2026 Surgery/Plastic Surgery UNLV Health
09/23/2025 - Kidney Specialists of CAT. 1
8 | Gupta Aman M.D 08/31/2027 Medicine/Nephrology Southern Nevada
09/23/2025 - Pediatrics/Pediatric Pediatrix Medical CAT. 1
9 | Jones Brittney M.D 07/31/2027 Teleneurology Group
09/23/2025 - CAT. 1
10 | Khakshooy Allen M.D 07/31/2027 Medicine/Internal Medicine Platinum Hospitalists
Surgery/Plastic
09/23/2025 - Surgery/Orthopaedic Surgery- CAT. 1
11 | Lee Jacquelynn M.D 06/30/2027 Hand UNLV Health
*Lico
(Interview at
Credentials 09/23/2025 - Surgery/Cardiovascular/Thoracic Nevada Heart and *CAT. 2
12 | Comm.) Serrie M.D 06/30/2027 Surgery Vascular
Mike O'Callaghan
09/23/2025 - Military Medical CAT. 1
13 | Mowen Steven M.D 09/30/2027 Emergency Medicine Center
09/23/2025 - CAT. 1
14 | Nguyen Danny M.D 05/31/2027 Surgery/General Surgery Desert West Surgery
09/23/2025 - Pediatrics/Pediatric Pediatrix Medical CAT. 1
15 | Pasupuleti Archana M.D 02/28/2027 Teleneurology Group
Mike O'Callaghan
09/23/2025 - Military Medical CAT. 1
16 | Praske Steven D.O 09/30/2026 Medicine/Pulmonary Center (Rotator)
09/23/2025 - CAT. 1
17 | Pulido Richard M.D 02/28/2027 Medicine/Internal Medicine UMC Hospitalists
09/23/2025 - Emergency Medicine/Pediatric UMC Pediatric CAT. 1
18 | Reeves John M.D 07/31/2027 Emergency Medicine Emergency Medicine

Page 22 of 194




UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA

September 24, 2025

Page 2

*Rogers
(Interview at
Credentials 09/23/2025 - *CAT. 1
19 | Comm.) Andrew M.D 01/31/2027 Surgery/General Surgery Desert West Surgery
09/23/2025 - CAT. 1
20 | Sabour Andrew M.D 04/30/2027 Surgery/General Surgery UNLV Health
09/23/2025 - CAT. 1
21 | Slavick Kera PA 03/31/2027 Medicine/Physical Medicine Farzin Farhangnejad
09/23/2025 - Nevada Behavioral CAT. 1
22 | Wilson Angela APRN 08/31/2027 Medicine/Psychiatry Health
B. REAPPOINTMENTS TO STAFF
APP Active
Independent
Membership and
Privileges to APP
Independent UuMcC
11/01/2025- Pediatrics/Neonato Membership Neonatology CAT. 1
1 Alday Magnolia APRN 10/31/2027 logy and Privileges. Unit
Active with
Membership and
Privileges to
Affiliate with Las Vegas
11/01/2025- Obstetrics and Membership Gynecologic CAT. 1
2 Brewer Cheryl M.D 10/31/2027 Gynecology and Privileges Oncology
Active with
Membership and
Privileges to
Affiliate with Children's
11/01/2025- Membership Urology CAT. 1
3 Casey Jessica M.D 10/31/2027 Surgery/Urology and Privileges Associates
Medicine/Ambulat Affiliate
11/01/2025- ory Care/Quick Membership and Reliant CAT. 1
4 Chen George D.O. 10/31/2027 Care Privileges Physicians
APP Active
Surgery/General Independent
11/01/2025- Surgery/APP Membership and CAT. 1
5 Ching Jayme APRN 10/31/2027 Trauma Privileges umMcC
Ambulatory
11/01/2025- Care/Telemedicine | APP Dependent UMC Online CAT. 1
6 Clark Brittany PAC 10/31/2027 /APP ER Adult Privileges Care
Affiliate General
11/01/2025- Surgery/General Membership and Vascular CAT. 1
7 Cottrell Earl M.D 10/31/2027 Surgery Privileges Specialists
Affiliate Medicus
11/01/2025- Radiology/Teleradi | Membership and Healthcare CAT. 1
8 Couvillon Joseph M.D 10/31/2027 ology Privileges Solutions

Page 23 of

194



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA

Page 3

September 24, 2025

Active with
Membership and
Privileges to
Affiliate with
11/01/2025- | Surgery/Oral/Maxil Membership CAT. 1
9 Daccache Michel DDS 10/31/2027 lofacial Surgery and Privileges Nevada OMS
Affiliate
11/01/2025- Membership and (§]\Y[@ CAT. 1
10 DaCosta Michelle M.D 10/31/2026 Anesthesiology Privileges Anesthesia
Affiliate
Membership and
Medicine/Pediatric Privileges to
11/01/2025- s/Pediatric Critical Refer and ECLS Virtual CAT. 1
11 Dalton Heidi 10/31/2027 Care Follow Advisors
Affiliate
11/01/2025- Medicine/Internal | Membership and umc CAT. 1
12 De Asis Chriscile M.D. 10/31/2027 Medicine Privileges Hospitalists
Affiliate UMC-Spring
11/01/2025- Ambulatory Membership and Valley Quick CAT. 1
13 DiLauro Michele M.D. 10/31/2027 Care/Quick Care Privileges Care
Affiliate
11/01/2025- Membership and | Intermountain CAT. 1
14 Downes Christopher M.D. 10/31/2027 Family Medicine Privileges Healthcare
Affiliate
11/01/2025- Medicine/Internal | Membership and umMcC CAT. 1
15 Empey Lonnie D.O. 10/31/2026 Medicine Privileges Hospitalists
Active with
Membership and
Privileges to
Affiliate with uMcC
11/01/2025- Pediatrics/Neonato Membership Neonatology CAT. 1
16 Ezeanolue Kanayo M.D 10/31/2027 logy and Privileges Unit
Affiliate
11/01/2025- Medicine/Internal | Membership and umMcC CAT. 1
17 Folad Wally M.D 10/31/2027 Medicine Privileges Hospitalists
11/01/2025- Orthopaedic APP Dependent | Cure4theKids | caT. 1
18 Fong Taylor PAC 10/31/2027 Surgery Privileges Foundation
Affiliate UMC-Peccole
11/01/2025- Ambulatory Membership and | Ranch Primary | caT 1
19 Fukuda Sohei D.O. 10/31/2027 Care/Primary Care Privileges Care
APP
Independent
11/01/2025- Medicine/Nephrol | Membership and CAT. 1
20 Galang Marphyrose APRN 10/31/2027 ogy Privileges NKDHC, PLLC
Affiliate
11/01/2025- Medicine/Internal | Membership and CAT. 1
21 Ghiwot Yonatan M.D 10/31/2027 Medicine Privileges UNLV Health
Page 24 of 194



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA

Page 4

September 24, 2025

Active with
Membership and
Emergency Privileges to
Medicine/Adult Affiliate with umcC
11/01/2025- Emergency Membership Emergency CAT. 1
22 Gowhari Daniel D.O. 10/31/2027 Medicine and Privileges Medicine
Emergency APP
Medicine/Adult Independent §]\Y[@
11/01/2025- Emergency Membership and Emergency CAT. 1
23 Green Tammy APRN 10/31/2027 Medicine Privileges Medicine
Active with
Membership and
Privileges to RED ROCK
Affiliate with ANESTHESIA
11/01/2025- | Anesthesiology/Tra Membership CONSULTANTS | cAT. 1
24 Grigsby Kenneth M.D. 10/31/2027 uma Anesthesia and Privileges LLC
Affiliate
11/01/2025- Membership and CAT. 1
25 Gunalp Feza M.D. 10/31/2027 Anesthesiology Privileges PBS Anesthesia
Affiliate Comprehensive
11/01/2025- | Medicine/Hematol | Membership and | Cancer Centers | caT. 1
26 Gupta Vikas M.D. 10/31/2027 ogy/Oncology Privileges of Nevada
Affiliate
11/01/2025- Medicine/Internal | Membership and umMcC CAT. 1
27 Guzman Eloise M.D 10/31/2026 Medicine Privileges Hospitalists
Active
11/01/2025- Medicine/Cardiolo | Membership and | Nevada Heart & CAT. 1
28 Hawwass Dalia M.D 10/31/2027 gy Privileges Vascular Center
APP Active
Independent
11/01/2025- Membership and CAT. 1
29 Hutton Kristina APRN 10/31/2027 Neurosurgery Privileges umc
Emergency
Medicine/Adult uMcC
11/01/2025- Emergency APP Dependent Emergency CAT. 1
30 Hwang Simon PAC 10/31/2027 Medicine Privileges Medicine
Surgery/General Affiliate
11/01/2025- Surgery & Trauma | Membership and CAT. 1
31 Kashtan Harris M.D 10/31/2027 Surgery Privileges UNLV Surgery
Affiliate UMC-Blue
11/01/2025- Ambulatory Membership and | Diamond Quick | caT. 1
32 Kegan Christopher D.O. 10/31/2026 Care/Quick Care Privileges Care
Affiliate uMcC-
11/01/2025- Ambulatory Membership and Centennial CAT. 1
33 Keith Elena D.O. 10/31/2027 Care/Quick Care Privileges Quick Care
Affiliate Pediatric
11/01/2025- Surgery/Pediatric | Membership and Surgery CAT. 1
34 Kogut Kelly M.D 10/31/2027 Surgery Privileges Associates
Page 25 of 194



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA

Page 5

September 24, 2025

APP Active
Independent
11/01/2025- | Medicine/Psychiatr | Membership and CAT.
35 Lising Arkay Marie APRN 10/31/2027 y Privileges uMC
Affiliate
11/01/2025- Medicine/Nephrol | Membership and CAT.
37 Mohammed Ashraf M.D. 10/31/2027 ogy Privileges NKDHC, PLLC
Medicine/Endocrin Affiliate
11/01/2025- ology/Metabolic Membership and CAT.
38 Mrkaic Ana M.D 10/31/2027 Diseases Privileges UNLV Medicine
Affiliate Prime
11/01/2025- Medicine/Cardiolo | Membership and Cardiology of CAT.
39 Narula Dhiraj M.D. 10/31/2027 gy Privileges Nevada
Affiliate
11/01/2025- Ambulatory Membership and UMC Online CAT.
40 Oehlsen George D.O. 10/31/2027 Care/Telemedicine Privileges Care
Affiliate Medicus
11/01/2025- Radiology/Teleradi | Membership and Healthcare CAT.
41 Pakdaman Michael M.D 10/31/2027 ology Privileges Solutions
Active
Membership and
Privileges to
Affiliate UMC-Peccole
11/01/2025- | Ambulatory/Primar Membership Ranch Primary | caT.
42 Paner Abegail M.D. 10/31/2027 y Care and Privileges Care
UMC-Blue
11/01/2025- Ambulatory/Quick | APP Dependent Diamond Quick | caT.
43 Robinson Kirk PAC 10/31/2027 Care Privileges Care
APP
Independent
11/01/2025- Medicine/Internal | Membership and Platinum CAT.
44 San Luis Jasmin APRN 10/31/2027 Medicine Privileges Hospitalists
Emergency
Medicine/Adult
Emergency
Medicine & Active umMcC
11/01/2025- | Trauma Emergency | Membership and Emergency CAT.
45 Scheer Ronald D.O. 10/31/2027 Medicine Privileges Medicine
Affiliate UMC-
11/01/2025- Ambulatory Membership and Centennial CAT.
46 Serbousek Thomas M.D 10/31/2027 Care/Quick Care Privileges Quick Care
Emergency
Medicine/Adult
Emergency
Medicine & Active UuMcC
11/01/2025- | Trauma Emergency | Membership and Emergency CAT.
47 Slattery David M.D 10/31/2027 Medicine Privileges Medicine
Active
11/01/2025- Medicine/Internal | Membership and Pioneer CAT.
48 Tariq Nadeem M.D 10/31/2027 Medicine Privileges Healthcare

Page 26 of 194




UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA

Page 6

September 24, 2025

Active
Membership and
Privileges to
Affiliate
11/01/2025- Medicine/Cardiolo Membership Nevada Heart & | caT. 1
49 Tselikis Nicholas M.D 10/31/2027 gy and Privileges Vascular Center
Active
Membership and
Privileges to
Affiliate
11/01/2025- Medicine/Cardiolo Membership Nevada Heart & | caT. 1
50 Umakanthan Branavan D.O. 10/31/2027 gy and Privileges Vascular Center
Active
Membership and
Privileges to
Affiliate
11/01/2025- Medicine/Internal Membership CAT. 1
51 Wahi-Gururaj Sandhya M.D. 10/31/2027 Medicine and Privileges UNLV Health
APP
Independent UMC-Southern
11/01/2025- Ambulatory Membership and Highlands CAT. 1
52 Walker Tanya APRN 10/31/2027 Care/Primary Care Privileges Primary Care
Active
Membership and
Privileges to
Affiliate
11/01/2025- Medicine/Nephrol Membership CAT. 1
53 Wei Peilin M.D 10/31/2027 ogy and Privileges NKDHC, PLLC
Affiliate
11/01/2025- Surgery/General Membership and | JonS. Williams, | caT. 1
54 Williams Jon M.D 10/31/2027 Surgery Privileges PLLC
11/01/2025- Ambulatory APP Dependent UMC Online CAT. 1
55 Willis Jennifer PAC 10/31/2027 Care/Telemedicine Privileges Care
Affiliate UMC-Spring
11/01/2025- Ambulatory Membership and Valley Quick CAT. 1
56 Zarrini Hossein M.D 10/31/2027 Care/Quick Care Privileges Care
C. MODIFICATION OF PRIVILEGES AT REAPPOINTMENT
Withdrawal Privileges:
** Co2 Laser Surgery
** Yag Laser Surgery
** Moderate Sedation
11/01/2025- ** Dilation & Evacuation up to 24
1 Brewer Cheryl M.D 10/31/2027 Obstetrics and Gynecology | weeks.
New Privileges:
(Medicine DOP)
11/01/2025- Medicine/Ambulatory ** Ambulatory
2 Chen George D.O. 10/31/2027 Care/Quick Care ** Telemedicine
Ambulatory
11/01/2025- | Care/Telemedicine/APP ER | New Privilege:
4 Clark Brittany PAC 10/31/2027 Adult (Ambulatory Care DOP) ** Take
Page 27 of 194



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA

Page 7
September 24, 2025

patient medical history and perform
a physical examination
11/01/2025- Withdrawal Privilege:
5 Cottrell Earl M.D 10/31/2027 Surgery/General Surgery | ** Ambulatory
Withdrawal Privileges:
11/01/2025- ** Ultrasound Guided Procedures
6 Couvillon Joseph M.D 10/31/2027 Radiology/Teleradiology ** CT Guided Procedures
New Department:
Emergency ** Trauma DOP
11/01/2025- Medicine/Adult Withdrawal Privilege:
7 Gowhari Daniel D.O. 10/31/2027 Emergency Medicine ** Telemedicine.
Emergency Withdrawal Privileges:
11/01/2025- Medicine/Adult (APP DOP) ** Ambulatory
8 Green Tammy APRN 10/31/2027 Emergency Medicine ** Aspiration privilege
11/01/2025- Medicine/Hematology/On | Withdraw Privilege:
9 Gupta Vikas M.D 10/31/2027 cology ** Internal Medicine
New Privilege:
11/01/2025- ** Percutaneous Coronary
10 Hawwass Dalia M.D 10/31/2027 Medicine/Cardiology Artherectomy
Withdraw Privileges:
All current privileges except Routine
11/01/2025- Interpretations (TeleRadiologist
11 Pakdaman Michael M.D 10/31/2027 Radiology/Teleradiology | only)
D. MODIFICATION OF PRIVILEGES
Modification of Privilege -
Withdraw Department:
** Ambulatory Medicine
Withdraw Privilege:
1 Ahmed Shamoona M.D Medicine/Internal Medicine ** Telemedicine
Modification of Privilege -
2 | Attenasio Andrea D.O. Orthopaedic Surgery (Trauma DOP) ** Complex Pelvic Fractures
Modification of Privilege -
New Privilege: ** Moderate Sedation (Trauma
3 Berry Keith M.D Surgery/General Surgery DOP)
Modification of Privilege -
New Department: ** Trauma
4 Burke Jason M.D. Anesthesiology New Privilege: ** Core trauma anesthesia
Modification of Privilege -
5 Caverly Erin D.O. Surgery/General Surgery New Privilege: ** Deep Sedation (Trauma DOP)
Modification of Privilege -
Withdraw Privilege: ** Assist in
6 Engelhardt Mary APRN OB/GYN Laparoscopy/Hysteroscopy
Modification of Privilege -
Surgery/General & Trauma Burn | Withdraw Privilege: ** Ambulatory Medicine
7 Fleming Irma M.D Care & Trauma Critical Care (General Surgery DOP)

Page 28 of

194



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA

Page 8
September 24, 2025

Inman

Brannon

M.D.

Medicine/Critical
Care/Pulmonary

Modification of Privilege -
New Departments:

** Emergency Medicine
** Trauma Emergency

Jordan

Matthew

M.D.

Anesthesiology

Modification of Privilege -
New Department:

** Trauma Anesthesiology
New Privilege:

** Core trauma anesthesia

10

Kempton

Edward

Emergency Medicine/Adult
Emergency Medicine

Modification of Privilege -
New Department: **Trauma Emergency
Medicine

11

Mayers

Alexander

M.D.

Orthopaedic Surgery

Modification of Privilege -

New Department:

** Trauma Orthopaedic Surgery
New Privileges:

** Core Orthopaedic

** Complex Pelvic Fractures

12

Nizamani

Rabia

Surgery/General Surgery

Modification of Privilege -
New Privilege: ** Laser Surgery: Co2

13

Pamulapati

Vivek

Surgery/General Surgery/Trauma

Modification of Privilege -
New Department: ** Trauma Burn
New Privilege: **Core Burn Care

E. MODIFICATION OF PRIVILEGE: TEMPORARY PRIVILEGE — PROCTOR

New Privileges: (Trauma DOP)
(Protoctor)

**Central line replacement with or
without ultrasound

**Arterial Line placement with or
without ultrasound

**Chest thoracostomy tube

11/01/2025- Surgery/General placement, maintenance, and
1 Ching Jayme APRN 10/31/2027 Surgery/APP Trauma removal.
F. EXTENSION OF INITIAL FPPE

Extend App Initial FPPE Privileges thru April 2026
1 Bowers Rachel PAC Surgery/Urology due to not being able to provide cases

Extend App Initial FPPE Privileges thru April 2026
2 | Caparros MA Renzel APRN Family Medicine due to not being able to provide cases

Extend App Initial FPPE Privileges thru April 2026
3 Engelhardt Mary APRN OB/GYN due to not being able to provide cases

Extend Initial FPPE Privileges thru April 2026 due to
4 Mehdi Raja M.D Oncology not being able to provide cases

Page 29 of 194




UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA

Page 9
September 24, 2025

Extend Initial FPPE Privileges thru April 2026 due to

5 Mukherjee Rita M.D Oncology not being able to provide cases

Extend Initial FPPE Privileges thru April 2026 due to
6 | Reed Kenneth DMD Oral Maxillofacial Surgery | not being able to provide cases

Extend Initial FPPE Privileges thru April 2026 due to
7 | Valladares Jose M.D Oncology not being able to provide cases

Extend Initial FPPE Privileges thru April 2026 due to
8 Wasserman Richard M.D OB/GYN not being able to provide cases

G. EXTENSION OF FPPE: NEW DEPT/PRIVILEGE

Orthopaedic Surgery &

Orthopaedic Hand Extend FPPE for Arthroscopic Surgery thru April
1 Fadell David D.O. Surgery 2026 due to not being able to provide cases
Extend FPPE for Trauma Anesthesiology thru April
2 Kravetz Kyle M.D Anesthesiology 2026 due to not being able to provide cases

H. COMPLETION OF FPPE: NEW DEPARTMENT/PRIVILEGES

Completion of FPPE: Total Parenteral Nutrition (TPN)
1 | Alali Abdallah M.D Medicine/Nephrology (TPN is part of CORE)
Surgery/General &
Trauma Burn Care & Completion of FPPE: Amputations (Amputations have
2 Fleming Irma M.D Trauma Critical Care been added to the CORE)
Completion of FPPE: Department: Radiology - New
3 Roberts Catherine M.D Radiology Privilege: Core (Routine Interpretation)
Completion of FPPE: Total Parenteral Nutrition (TPN)
4 | Weltman James D.O. Medicine/Nephrology (TPN is part of CORE)
I. STATUS CHANGE: INITIAL FPPE
Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial
Interventional FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate
1 Alkadri Mohi M.D Cardiology Membership and Privileges- Completion of FPPE
Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial
Emergency FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate
2 Boulos Sarah D.O. Medicine Membership and Privileges- Completion of FPPE
Change in Staff Status - Release from APP Initial FPPE
Privileges to APP Independent Membership Privileges
3 Frias Jason CRNA Anesthesiology - Completion of FPPE (Rotators do not require FPPE)
Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate
4 Garica Diana M.D Pathology Membership and Privileges- Completion of FPPE

Page 30 of

194



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA

Page 10
September 24, 2025

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate
Membership and Privileges- Completion of FPPE
5 Ichinoe Denice D.O. Family Medicine | (Refer and Follow do not require FPPE)
Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate
6 Korczynski Michael D.O. Radiology Membership and Privileges- Completion of FPPE
Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial
Emergency FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate
7 Lange Kristopher D.O. Medicine Membership and Privileges- Completion of FPPE
Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate
8 Li Yiting M.D. Pathology Membership and Privileges- Completion of FPPE
Change in Staff Status - Release from APP Initial FPPE
Emergency Privileges to APP Dependent Privileges - Completion of
9 Lopez Madison PAC Medicine FPPE
Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate
Surgery/General | Membership and Privileges- Completion of FPPE
10 | Mecham Kyle D.O. Surgery (Rotators do not require FPPE)
Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial
Pediatric Critical | FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate
11 Mitchell Errin M.D Care Membership and Privileges- Completion of FPPE
Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate
12 Mobini Narciss M.D Pathology Membership and Privileges- Completion of FPPE
Change in Staff Status - Release from APP Initial FPPE
Privileges to APP Dependent Privileges - Completion of
13 Moderow Shelby PAC Family Medicine | FPPE (Rotators do not require FPPE)
Change in Staff Status - Release from APP Initial FPPE
Emergency Privileges to APP Dependent Privileges - Completion of
14 | Olen Rebecca PAC Medicine FPPE
Change in Staff Status - Release from APP Initial FPPE
Emergency Privileges to APP Dependent Privileges - Completion of
15 Planes Jamie PAC Medicine FPPE
Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate
16 | Walls Andrew M.D Pediatrics Membership and Privileges- Completion of FPPE
J. SPONSOR CHANGE
APP Change in Supervising/Collaborating Physician —
Change Supervising Physician from James Forage MD to
1 | Ward Matthew PAC Neurosurgery Julia Yi MD
K. STATUS CHANGE
Change in Staff Status: Affiliate with Membership
and Privileges to Active with Membership and
1 Bell Don M.D Radiology Privileges

Page 31 of

194



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA

Page 11

September 24, 2025

Change in Staff Status: Affiliate with Membership
and Privileges to Active with Membership and
2 Bratton Anthony M.D Orthopaedic Surgery | Privileges
Change in Staff Status: Affiliate with Membership
and Privileges to Active with Membership and
3 Hansen Benjamin M.D Orthopaedic Surgery | Privileges
Change in Staff Status: Affiliate with Membership
and Privileges to Active with Membership and
4 Pietryga Janel M.D. Orthopaedic Surgery | Privileges
Orthopaedic
Surgery/Hnad Change in Staff Status: Affiliate with Membership
Surgery/Plastic and Privileges to Active with Membership and
5 Pistorio Ashley M.D Surgery Privileges
Change in Staff Status: Affiliate with Membership
and Privileges to Active with Membership and
6 Powers Jenifer M.D Orthopaedic Surgery | Privileges
Change in Staff Status: Affiliate with Membership
and Privileges to Active with Membership and
7 Romero Brandon M.D. Orthopaedic Surgery | Privileges
Change in Staff Status: Affiliate with Membership
and Privileges to Active with Membership and
8 Vera Angelina M.D. Orthopaedic Surgery | Privileges
Change in Staff Status: Affiliate with Membership
and Privileges to Active with Membership and
9 Bell Don M.D. Radiology Privileges
M. RESIGNATIONS
Office of Military
1 Acquafredda Joseph CRNA Anesthesiology Medicine Resignation: Military Rotator
Mike O'Callaghan
Medicine/Internal Military Medical Resignation: Military Rotator
2 | Aleligne Yeabsra M.D Medicine Center end date 09/30/2025
Medicine/Internal Platinum Resignation: 10-Day notice (no
3 Balajadia Queennie APRN Medicine Hospitalists response)
UMC Military
4 Brown Aubrey PAC Family Medicine Program Resignation - Rotation Ending
Resignation: Privileges at
5 Bryant Nicholas PAC Radiology UMC Radiology another facility
Medicine/Endocrinol
ogy/Metabolic Intermountain Resignation form signed
6 Bubb Chard M.D Diseases Healthcare 8.12.2025 NO CC for Endo
Pediatrics/Pediatric Resignation: Failure to renew
7 Cartie Richard M.D Critical Care Locum Tenens NV Medical License
Surgery / Plastic Resignation - Leaving
8 Claman Barry M.D Surgery UNLV Health UNLV/UMC
Medicine/Pulmonary
Medicine/Respirator Pulomonary Resignation: 10-Day notice (no
9 Del Mundo Lloyd D.O. y Care Associates, Inc response)
Medicine/Infectious UMC Infectious
10 | Frani lan Adrian M.D Disease Disease Resignation: Relocating

Page 32 of

194



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA

Page 12

September 24, 2025

Office of Military

Resignation: Out of the country

11 | Jensen Scott MD Anesthesiology Medicine until Jan 2026
Resignation: Auto
Relinquishment of Membership
Radiology/Teleradiol | Medicus Healthcare | and Privileges - Per Medicus
12 | Liu Yuzhou M.D. ogy Solutions Not Reappointing
Mike O'Callaghan
Military Medical
13 | Moderow Shelby PAC Family Medicine Center Resignation: Military Rotator
Ambulatory UMC-Centennial Resignation: 10-Day notice (no
14 Naginani Bhavani M.D Care/Quick Care Quick Care response)
Mike O'Callaghan
Military Medical Resignation: Military Rotation
15 | Noble Jade D.O. Family Medicine Center Complete
Mike O'Callaghan
Military Medical
16 | Oakey Daniel D.O. Family Medicine Center Resignation: Military Rotator
17 | Phan Sydney D.O. Family Medicine UNLV Health Resignation - Relocating
Medicine/Pulmonary Mike O'Callaghan
Medicine/Respirator Military Medical Resignation: Military Rotator
18 | Praske Steven D.O. y Care Center end date 09/30/2025
Mike O'Callaghan
Military Medical
19 | Ray Bryan M.D Anesthesiology Center Resignation: Military Rotator
Resignation: No
Medicine/Internal Community Reappointment exp.
20 | Sheikh Sameer M.D Medicine Medicine Inc 09/30/2025
Mike O'Callaghan
Military Medical Resignation: Military Rotator
21 | Welljams-Dorof Michael M.D Anesthesiology Center end date 09/30/2025
Brian A. Wyn MD, Removal from Staff: Failure to
22 | Wyn Brian M.D Anesthesiology PLLC complete initial FPPE
Comprehensive
Medicine/Hematolog Cancer Centers of | Resignation: 10-Day notice (no
23 | Yousif Ammar M.D y/Oncology Nevada response)
N. PINK — OFF CYCLE
1 Manthei | Scott D.O. Surgery/Otolaryngology Nevada Ear & Sinus Institute
O. ADJOURNMENT

Page 33 of 194




UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF MEDICINE — TRANSPLANT HEPATOLOGY
DELINEATION OF PRIVILEGES

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER

NAME: [J Initial Application
[] Reappointment
Effective FROM: TO: [C] Additional Privilege

Applicant: Check off the “Requested” box for each privilege requested. Applicants have the burden of producing information deemed
adequate by the Hospital for a proper evaluation of current competence, current clinical activity, and other qualifications and for
resolving any doubts related to qualifications for requested privileges.

Other Requirements

e It should be noted that wherever a specified clinical activity requirement exists, the application for privileges must be accompanied
by a case log from which specific patient identification information is omitted.

e  Note that privileges granted may only be exercised at the site and/or in a setting with the appropriate equipment, license, beds, staff,
and other support required to provide the services defined in this document. Practice must conform with any age-specific
restrictions in place in a given setting. Site-specific services may be defined in hospital and/or department policy.

e  This document focuses on defining competency-related qualifications to exercise clinical privileges. The applicant must also adhere
to any additional organizational, regulatory, or accreditation requirements the organization must meet.

QUALIFICATIONS FOR TRANSPLANT HEPATOLOGY

To be eligible to apply for core privileges in Transplant Hepatology, the initial applicant must meet the following criteria:

Successful completion of an Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education (ACGME) or American Osteopathic Association
(AOA) accredited residency in Internal Medicine.

AND

Successful completion of an Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education (ACGME) or American Osteopathic Association
(AOA) accredited fellowship in Gastroenterology.

AND

Current board certification in Gastroenterology by the American Board of Internal Medicine or the American Osteopathic Board of
Internal Medicine, as required by Medical Staff Bylaws.

AND

Successful completion of an Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education (ACGME) accredited fellowship in Transplant
Hepatology with current or active participation in the examination process leading to Transplant Hepatology certification by the
American Board of Internal Medicine, within five (5) years as required by Medical Staff Bylaws.

OR

Show provision of care as the primary liver transplant physician of at least fifty (50) transplanted liver recipients and demonstrate
continued care for a minimum of three (3) months from the time of transplant within the past twenty-four (24) months.

Regquired Previous Experience: Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate provision of care, reflective of the scope
of privileges requested, for at least twenty-five (25) transplanted liver recipient cases during the past twelve (12) months or successful
completion of an ACGME accredited clinical fellowship in Transplant Hepatology within the past twelve (12) months.

Focused Professional Practice Evaluation (FPPE): After privileges are granted, all initial applicants will be subject to FPPE. FPPE will
be performed by one or more of the review types noted in the FPPE policy. FPPE reviews will reflect the scope and complexity of the
privileges requested.

Maintenance of privilege: To be eligible to renew core privileges in Transplant Hepatology, the applicant must meet the following
maintenance of privilege criteria:

Current demonstrated competence and an adequate volume of at least twenty-five (25) transplanted liver recipient cases with acceptable
results, reflective of the scope of privileges requested, for the past twenty-four (24) months based on ongoing professional practice
evaluation and outcomes results. All applicants require evidence of current ability to perform privileges requested for renewal of
privileges.

UMC DRAFT 4/2025

Page 34 of

194



CORE PRIVILEGES

TRANSPLANT HEPATOLOGY CORE PRIVILEGES

Admit, evaluate, diagnose, consult, and manage patients of all ages with liver dysfunction and end-stage liver disease requiring liver
transplantation, including participation in the selection of appropriate recipients for transplantation and donor selection, histo-
compatibility and tissue typing, pre- and postoperative and continuing care, the use of immunosuppressive therapy, histologic
interpretation of allograft biopsies, interpretation of ancillary tests for liver dysfunction, percutaneous liver biopsy, and long-term patient
care. Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with emergent conditions consistent with medical staff policy regarding
emergency and consultative call services.

Requested 1 UMC

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF PRACTITIONER

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, current experience, and demonstrated performance I am qualified
to perform, and I understand that:

a. In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Hospital and Medical Staff policies and rules applicable generally
and any applicable to the particular situation.

b.  Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation my actions are
governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents.

c. To the best of my knowledge, I have no physical or mental limitations that would adversely affect the exercise of these privileges,
which I am requesting.

Signed Date

**MEDICAL STAFF USE ONLY**

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and privilege criteria (cases, education, etc.) for the above named applicant and
recommend action on the privileges noted above.

CHIEF, DEPARTMENT OF MEDICINE DATE

UMC DRAFT 4/2025

Page 35 of 194



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICINE

DELINEATION OF PRIVILEGES - ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED NURSE

SPECIALIST (SANE) UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER

NAME: [] Initial Application
[ ] Reappointment

Effective FROM: TO: [] Additional Privilege

Applicant: Check off the “Requested” box for each privilege requested. Applicants have the burden of producing information deemed
adequate by the Hospital for a proper evaluation of current competence, current clinical activity, and other qualifications, and for
resolving any doubts related to qualifications for requested privileges.

Other Requirements

e  Note that privileges granted may only be exercised at the site and/or setting with the appropriate equipment, license, beds, staff, and
other support required to provide the services defined in this document. Practice must conform to any age-specific restrictions that
may be in place in a given setting. Site-specific services may be defined in hospital and/or department policy.

e  This document focuses on defining competency-related qualifications to exercise clinical privileges. The applicant must also adhere
to any additional organizational, regulatory, or accreditation requirements the organization must meet.

QUALIFICATIONS FOR ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED NURSE SPECIALIST (SANE)

To be eligible to apply for core privileges as an Advanced Practice Registered Nurse Specialist (SANE), the initial applicant must meet
the following criteria:

e  Successful completion of a master’s, post-master’s, or doctorate from a Nurse Practitioner program accredited by the
Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education (CCNE) or National League for Nursing Accrediting Commission (NLNAC)

AND

e  SANE Certification by the International Association of Forensic Nurses (IAFN) or Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner-
Adult/Adolescent (SANE-A) and Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner-Pediatric (SANE-P) or Advanced Forensic
Nursing Board Certification (AFN-BC) through the American Nurses Credentialing Center (ANCC)

Regquired Previous Experience: Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate provision of care, reflective of the scope
of privileges requested, for at least 50 SANE cases which include 10 SANE Adolescents and 10 SANE-Pediatrics, during the past twelve
(12) months, or demonstrated completion of training and certification within the past twelve (12) months.

Focused Professional Practice Evaluation (FPPE): After privileges are granted, all initial applicants will be subject to FPPE. FPPE will
be performed by one or more of the review types noted in the FPPE policy. FPPE reviews will reflect the scope and complexity of the
privileges requested.

Maintenance of privilege: To be eligible to renew core privileges as an Advanced Practice Registered Nurse Specialist (SANE), the
applicant must meet the following maintenance of privilege criteria:

e  Maintain current SANE Certification by the International Association of Forensic Nurses (IAFN) or Sexual Assault
Nurse Examiner-Adult/Adolescent (SANE-A) and Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner-Pediatric (SANE-P) or
Advanced Forensic Nursing Board Certification (AFN-BC) through the American Nurses Credentialing Center
(ANCC)

e  Based on ongoing professional practice evaluation and outcomes, current demonstrated competence, and an adequate volume
of at least 50 SANE cases, which includes 10 SANE-Adolescents and 10 SANE-Pediatrics, with acceptable results, reflective
of the scope of privileges requested, for the past 24 months, all applicants require evidence of current ability to perform the
privileges requested for renewal of privileges.

CORE PRIVILEGES

ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED NURSE SPECIALIST (SANE)

Assess, diagnose, monitor, and promote health while protecting against disease. Deliver comprehensive care, including forensic
examinations and emotional support for patients who have experienced trauma, violence, sexual assault, or abuse.

Requested 1 UMC

UMC 8/2025

Page 36 of

194



Advanced Practice Registered Nurse Specialist (SANE) Procedure List

This list is a sampling of procedures included in the core. This is not intended to be an all-encompassing list but rather reflective of the
categories/types of procedures included in the core.

To the applicant: 1f you wish to exclude any procedures, please strike through those procedures that you do not wish to request,
including the initial and date.

Advanced Practice Registered Nurse Specialist (SANE)

1. Administering prophylactic medications
Collaborating with law enforcement and the legal system by accurately documenting findings, maintaining the chain of custody for
evidence, and potentially providing testimony in court cases, administrative hearings, or other matters

3. Conducting thorough medical forensic examinations to collect and preserve evidence (including- Strangulation

examinations, DNA samples, photographs of injuries, etc)

Coordinating follow-up care

Maintain appropriate documentation (example: consult note) in EMR

Medical triage, assessing and treating injuries

Obtain a relevant health and medical history

Offering crisis intervention and support to survivors throughout the examination process

XN

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF PRACTITIONER

I have requested only those privileges for which, by education, training, current experience, and demonstrated performance, I am
qualified to perform, and I understand that:

a. In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Hospital and Medical Staff policies and rules applicable generally
and any applicable to the particular situation.

b.  Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency. The applicable section of the Medical Staff
Bylaws or related documents governs my actions in such a situation.

c. To the best of my knowledge, I have no physical or mental limitations that would adversely affect the exercise of these privileges,
which I am requesting.

Signed Date

**MEDICAL STAFF USE ONLY**

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and privilege criteria (cases, education, etc.) for the above named applicant and
recommend action on the privileges noted above.

CHIEF, DEPARTMENT OF MEDICINE DATE

UMC 8/2025

Page 37 of 194



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA
GOVERNING BOARD
AGENDA ITEM

Issue: Amendment to Facility Agreement with Anthem Blue Cross and Blue | Back-up:
Shield and HMO Colorado, Inc.

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer Clerk Ref. #

Recommendation:

That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the
Amendment to the Facility Agreement with Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield and HMO
Colorado, Inc. for managed care services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible
action)

FISCAL IMPACT:
Fund Number: 5430.011 Fund Name: UMC Operating Fund
Fund Center: 3000850000 Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A

Description: Managed Care Services
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 332.115(1)(f) — Insurance
Term: Through January 1, 2026

Amount: Revenue based on volume

Out Clause: 90 business days w/o cause

BACKGROUND:

On August 1, 2016, UMC entered into a Facility Agreement with Rocky Mountain Hospital and Medical
Service, Inc. d/b/a Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield and HMO Colorado, Inc. d/b/a HMO Nevada, and
Community Care Health Plan of Nevada, Inc. (“Anthem”) for services UMC provides to Anthem’s members.
The Agreement was amended in August 2021, and again in June 2023 to extend the term and update
reimbursement rates.

This Amendment will add reimbursement rates for services performed at UMC’s Crisis Stabilization Center to
include reimbursement for CRNAs. The term has been clarified and extended until January 1, 2026, with this

Amendment.

UMC’s Director of Managed Care has reviewed and recommends approval of this Amendment, which has
also been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel.

A Clark County business license is not required as UMC is the provider of hospital services to this insurance
fund.

Cleared for Agenda
September 24, 2025

Agenda Item #

S

Page 38 of 194



This Amendment was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their September 17,
2025, meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board.

Page Number
2

Page 39 of 194



AMENDMENT TO THE
ANTHEM BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD
FACILITY AGREEMENT

This Amendment is to the Facility Agreement ("Agreement") dated August 1, 2016, and entered into between Rocky
Mountain Hospital and Medical Service, Inc. doing business as Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield and HMO Colorado,
Inc. doing business as HMO Nevada, and Community Care Health Plan of Nevada, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as
"Anthem") and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (hereinafter referred to as "Facility") and is incorporated
into the Agreement as follows:

BASE PROVISION

1. Term of Agreement. The parties have been operating under the terms of the Agreement since August 1,
2024, and mutually desire and agree to clarify the Agreement term through this Amendment. The term of the
Agreement is from August 1, 2024, to January 1, 2026, (which will align with the term of agreement date
outlined in the August 1, 2021, Amendment) automatically renewing for consecutive one (1) year terms unless
otherwise terminated as provided herein.

FACILITY LOCATIONS/NETWORKS ATTACHMENT

2. The following location is hereby added to the agreement;
UMC Crisis Stabilization Center
5409 E. Lake Mead Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89156

RATE SHEET
3. The existing Rate Sheet(s) is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the attached revised Rate

Sheet(s). The rates outlined in this Amendment are effective as of the effective date indicated on the
signature page of this Amendment

RATE SHEET ATTACHMENT

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature.]

Anthem Amendment
06/18/2025

Page 40 of 194



Except as expressly set forth herein, nothing contained herein shall be construed to modify the Agreement. To the
extent this Amendment conflicts with any provision of the Agreement, this Amendment shall control.

Each party to this Amendment warrants that it has full power and authority to enter into this Amendment and the person
signing this Amendment on behalf of either party warrants that he/she has been duly authorized and empowered to
enter into this Amendment.

THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS AMENDMENT IS: 10/01/2025

FACILITY LEGAL NAME: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

By:
Signature, Authorized Representative of Facility(s) Date

Printed: Mason VanHouweling Chief Executive Officer
Name Title

Address 1800 W. Charleston Blvd. Las Vegas NV 89102
Street City State Zip

Tax Identification Number (TIN): 886000436

Rocky Mountain Hospital and Medical Service, Inc. doing business as Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield
and HMO Colorado, Inc. doing business as HMO Nevada, and Community Care Health Plan of Nevada, Inc.

By: ak%w 08/04/2025

Signature, A@]orized Representative of Anthem Date

Printed: Ashley DeLanis Regional Vice President, Provider Solutions
Name Title

Address 9133 West Russell Road Las Vegas NV 89148
Street City State Zip

Email Address: nvcontracting@anthem.com

Anthem Amendment
06/18/2025

Page 41 of 194



INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE
DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM

Purpose of the Form

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical
Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where
they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public
officer or employee has interest is prohibited.

General Instructions

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing
entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada. Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an
agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity.

Detailed Instructions
All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed. If not applicable, write in N/A.

Business Entity Type — Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.
When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity.

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law.

Business Designation Group — Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small
Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET), Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or
Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such
purpose.

e Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native
American ethnicity.

. Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women.

. Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful
function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act.

. Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned
and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000.

. Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful
function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans.

. Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET): A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran.

. Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into
Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294.

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) — Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email — Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named
business entity.

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email — If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address
must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service,
or a business license hanging address.

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.)

List of Owners/Officers — Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity. If
the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.

For All Contracts — (Not required for publicly-traded corporations)
1)  Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada
full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s). If yes, the following paragraph applies.

In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any
private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4.

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity
relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for
definition). If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services.
Signature and Print Name — Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed.

Disclosure of Relationship Form — 1f any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of
Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.

REVISED 7/25/2014

Page 42 of 194



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS

Business Entity Type (Please select one)

[ Sole [ Limited Liability [ Non-Profit

Proprietorship [OPartnership Company X Corporation [ Trust Organization [ Other
Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply)
O MBE O wBE [0 sBe O PBE O ver CIoveT [JEsB
Minority Business Women-Owned Small Business Physically Challenged Veteran Owned Disabled Veteran Emerging Small
Enterprise Business Enterprise Business Enterprise Business Owned Business Business
Enterprise
Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed:
Corporate/Business Entity Name: Rocky Mountain Hospital and Medical Service, Inc.
(Include d.b.a., if applicable) d/b/a Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield and HMO Colorado, Inc., d/b/a HMO Nevada and Community Care Health
Plan of Nevada, Inc.
Street Address: 9133 W. Russell Rd. Website: www.anthem.com
Las Vegas, NV 89148 POC Name: Ashley DeLanis

City, State and Zip Code:
Email: ashley.delanis@anthem.com

Telephone No: 702-271-0648 Fax No: N/A

Nevada Local Street Address: Website: Same as above

. Same a above
(If different from above)

City, State and Zip Code: Same as above Local Fax No: N/A

Same as above Local POC Name: Same as above
Local Telephone No:
Email: Same as above

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board.

Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s).

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations,
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations.

Full Name Title % Owned
(Not required for Publicly Traded
Corporations/Non-profit organizations)

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations. Are you a publicly-traded corporation? X Yes [ No

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)?

O Yes X No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.)

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent, related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)?

O Yes X No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2. If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)

| certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. | also understand that the University Medical Center of
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure

form.

ak%}w Ashley DelLanis
Signature 0 Print Name
RVP,PSO 9/9/2025
Title Date

REVISED 7/25/2014

Page 43 of 194



List any disclosures below:
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.)

DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP

NAME OF BUSINESS
OWNER/PRINCIPAL

NAME OF UMC*
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL
AND JOB TITLE

RELATIONSHIP TO
UMC*
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL

umc*
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S
DEPARTMENT

N/A

* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood. “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage.

“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as

follows:

e Spouse — Registered Domestic Partners — Children — Parents — In-laws (first degree)

o Brothers/Sisters — Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters — Grandchildren — Grandparents — In-laws (second degree)

For UMC Use Only:

If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:

[J Yes [ No Isthe UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item?

[J Yes [ No Isthe UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract?

Notes/Comments:

Signature

Print Name
Authorized Department Representative

REVISED 7/25/2014

Page 44 of 194




UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA
GOVERNING BOARD
AGENDA ITEM

Issue: Third Amendment to the Preferred Provider Agreement with Culinary | Back-up:
Health Fund Administrative Services, LLC

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer Clerk Ref. #

Recommendation:

That the Governing Board ratify the Third Amendment to the Preferred Provider Agreement
with Culinary Health Fund Administrative Services, LLC for Managed Care Services; or take
action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

FISCAL IMPACT:
Fund Number: 5430.011 Fund Name: UMC Operating Fund
Fund Center: 3000850000 Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A

Description: Managed Care Services
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 332.115(1)(f) — Insurance
Term: 9/1/2025 - 12/31/2026

Amount: Revenue based on volume

Out Clause: 90 days w/o cause

BACKGROUND:

On December 16, 2020, the Governing Board approved the Preferred Provider Agreement with Culinary
Health Fund Administrative Services, LLC (“Culinary”) to provide its members continued healthcare access to
the UMC Hospital and its associated Urgent Care facilities, and to adjust the Urgent Care reimbursement. The
First Amendment, effective January 1, 2023, updated Attachment B to add the specialty of Anesthesiology at
the 1994 Resource-Based Relative Value Scale reimbursement rates. The Second Amendment extended the
term from January 1, 2024, through December 31, 2026.

This request is for ratification of the Third Amendment to increase the reimbursement rate for Urgent Care
Services. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. The
Amendment was entered into immediately to be effective as of September 1, 2025.

UMC’s Managed Care Director has reviewed and recommends ratification of this Amendment, which has also
been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel.

A Clark County business license is not required as UMC is the provider of hospital services to this insurance
fund.

This Amendment was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their September 17,
2025, meeting and recommended for ratification by the Governing Board.

Cleared for Agenda
September 24, 2025

Agenda Item #

6

Page 45 of 194



Page Number
2

Page 46 of 194



Docusign Envelope ID: 88CE8FAF-9314-4458-9BED-F7975F6781F6

CULINARY HEALTH FUND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LLC

PREFERRED PROVIDER AGREEMENTS
AMENDMENT #3

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT is made and entered into as of September 1, 2025 (the “Amendment
Effective Date™), by and between University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, a publicly
owned and operated hospital created by virtue of Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes
(“Provider™), and Culinary Health Fund Administrative Services, LLC, a corporation organized
under the laws of the State of Nevada (“Network™).

RECITALS

Pursuant to a Preferred Provider Agreement effective January 1, 2021, between PROVIDER and
NETWORK (the “Agreement”), PROVIDER agreed to provide certain described services for
participants and eligible dependents of the NETWORK in exchange for certain described

compensation.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above and for other good and valuable consideration,
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, NETWORK and PROVIDER agree

that the Agreement is amended as follows:

1. Attachment B, Reimbursement, shall be amended as of the Amendment Effective Date, to
increase reimbursement rates for Urgent Care services as follows:

Urgent Care Reimbursement

This rate includes all technical and professional charges.

All other terms and conditions of the 